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December 6, 2010

War Crimes Ambassador Stephen J. Rapp
Legal Adviser Harold Koh

U.S. Department of State

2201 C Street NW

Washington, DC 20520

Re: Recommendations for future U.S. policy towards the ICC
Dear War Crimes Ambassador Rapp and Legal Advisér. K

As chairperson of the Committee on the Internati@raninal Court of the

American Branch of the International Law Associatid appreciate the
opportunity to again express to you views regardimifed States relations
with the International Criminal Court. The Comrmeédt commends the
Administration’s positive and constructive engagetneith the ICC thus far.

This letter suggests additional steps that couldtdéen to advance and
continue that course. However, we are mindful leé Administration’s

existing legal and political concerns and recogrifz ratifying the Rome
Statute is not currently realistic at this time.

This Committee’s contribution is intended to asg@it in finalizing a U.S.
approach that will support a sustained and stremgtig relationship between
the U.S. and ICC. This relationship will build U&nfidence in the Court
and, when it is politically feasible, make it pdsdsifor the U.S. to ratify the
Rome Statute. Our recommendations are three-fbiee Administration
should: (1) formally recommit to U.S. signatorylightions under the Rome
Statute by sending a note to the Secretary Gemelighting that the U.S. is
ready to reassume its obligations as a signatatfyetdreaty; (2) continue to
refuse to defer the ICC’s outstanding arrest wasréor Sudanese President
Omar al Bashir and continue to support the ICQi#tigation in Darfur; and
(3) resume its policy review regarding the ICC artiforth a comprehensive
policy statement outlining the U.S. position.



First, as the Committee recommended in its March I&fer, the U.S. should send a note to the United
Nations Secretary-General indicating that the s $eady to reassume its signatory obligations vatpect

to the Rome Statute. Although Fmr. Ambassador Riiton’s May 2002 lettéronly deactivated the U.S.
signature by declaring the Bush Administration'®iti not to be bound by its obligations as a sigytit

did alienate the U.S. from the international comityumnd caused considerable tensidnsFormally
declaring U.S. intent to resume its signatory dailimns would help restore U.S. credibility in igrthcipled
engagement” with the Court and remove any remaidmgt within the international community regarding
past and future U.S. actions about the ICC. Sendinote does not require Congressional approwdl a
would eliminate ambiguity about U.S. intentions tmuundermine the Rome Statute. The note would als
advance two other important purposes: (a) it fdgr@nfirms to the U.N. Secretary-General that ths.

is ready to reassume its signatory obligationsctvigé consistent with increasing engagement byuig&
and Administration officials’ statements regardthg U.S. approach to the ICC; and (b) it is anmetgle in
good faith by the U.S., signaling its commitment thee treaty’s object and purpose and shows the
international community that U.S. actions are me lwith its statements.

Second, as a permanent member of the Security @pthree U.S. should continue to refuse to defer the
ICC’s outstanding arrest warrants for Sudaneseid&eisOmar al Bashir. The Rome Statute, underckerti
16, permits the Security Council to defer ICC irtigegions and/or prosecutions pursuant to its Giraytl
powers? Since the ICC issued its arrest warrants for ifees al Bashir for genocide, war crimes and
crimes against humanity, several States, includifrican Union (“AU”) member states, have urged the
Security Council to defer the ICC warraftsThese States argue that executing the warrafitsawiong
other things, frustrate and derail the peace pieSudan by deterring President al Bashir's pigdtion®
However, deferring the warrants for this reasonlatduave far-reaching effects. Generally, the ICC
prosecutes such individuals not only to bring pestand restore the rule of law, but also to deteers from
engaging in behavior contrary to international hoitaian law. If the Security Council were to defe
President al Bashir's warrants, ostensibly to emsiwat he participates in the peace process, future
defendants could evade or significantly delay afbgsmerely participating in a peace process. Tinay

do this in bad faith and regardless of the outcaafter committing genocide, war crimes and cringsirast
humanity, and may be emboldened to continue conmmitatrocities if they believe they will not face
justice. Such a result would be inconsistent hih intent and purpose of the Rome Statute asasethe
interests of justice. Consequently, the U.S. ghoemain steadfast in supporting the ICC investigain
Darfur and refusing to defer the ICC warrants, ipalarly because it was the Security Council tledéred
the Darfur situation to the ICC.

! Letter from John R. Bolton, U.S. Under-SecretainBtate for Arms Control and International Secyrity Kofi Annan, U.N.
Secretary General (May 6, 2002).

2 Press Briefing with Steven J. Rapp, Ambassadamege for War Crimes, http://geneva.usmission.gd¥(201/22/stephen-
rapp/

% Indeed, Fmr. Ambassador Bolton’s previous statésnexpressing his hope that without U.S. partiégmaand support the ICC
would “wither and collapse” likely contributed tioi$ tension. John Bolton, Undersecretary for A@oesitrol and International
Security and head of the administration's ICC te@marks made to the Senate Foreign Relations Caeanduly 23, 1998.

* Rome Statute, Art.16.

® International Bar AssociationArrest Warrant Against President al-Bashir Targets Impunity, Not Africa says IBA, at
http://www.ibanet.org/Article/Detail.aspx?Articletlif45B89B37-9C25-48B5-A45E-8DES9D652D64 (“The Africénion has
criticised the Court’s decision and may renew @t for the UN Security Council to defer the prodiesgs under Article 16 of the
Rome Statute.”).

®1d.; African Union Press Release No. 119/2010 On #wsibn of the pre-trial chamber of the ICC infongiithe UN Security
Council and the Assembly of the State PartiesédRbbme Statute about the presence of President Bassian al Bashir of the
Sudan in the territories of the Republic of Chad #ire Republic of Kenya, 29 August 2010, Addis Adab

" The President recently stressed the importaneasidring justice is done: “Q: Is peace not atifisie were to present himself
to the ICC? THE PRESIDENT: Well, | think that peaseat risk if there’s no transparency and acccifita of the actions that
are taking place, whether it's in Sudan or anywtedse in the world.” Interview with US PresidentrBek Obama, South African
Broadcasting Corporation, at http://www.whitehogse/the-press-office/interview-president-south-ri-broadcasting-
corporation;seealso H.R. 241, March 12, 2009 (“call[ing] upon the imetional community to persist in its efforts tortyi
President al-Bashir to justice and to pressureéstisanese regime to cease its campaign of violendarierican



Third, the Administration should resume its poli®view regarding the ICC and issue a comprehensive
policy statement outlining the U.S. position. Altlgh various Administration officials have made Ipub
statements supporting principled engagement wihl@C, these statements, even examined cumulatively
do not clearly define a complete U.S. policy. Aaland comprehensive policy statement would resefo
the Administration’s support for the ICC, providéasis for further consultations among ICC stakeéis

in the U.S. Government, and ensure that the U.&bles to respond to any situation that ariseslatios: to

the ICC, in line with U.S. policy goals. We belkethat such a comprehensive policy statement, lieget
with a note to the U.N. Secretary-General and ocoetl U.S. support for the ICC investigations infDar

are important elements in constructive and primrd@ngagement with the Court by the United States.

We remain encouraged by the Administration’s oped positive attitude towards engagement with the
ICC. Continued engagement could be very helgfuhé ICC by providing technical assistance, ptatgc
witnesses who testify before the tribufi@nd apprehending fugitives currently at large.g&gement will
also allow the U.S. to contribute to the ICC’s wdhus protecting its interests, without actuakgcbming a
State Party, as it did at the recent Review Confaze Moreover, successful and positive cooperadimh
dialogue within the ICC may assuage U.S. concdosittbecoming an ICC State Party.

In conclusion, the ABILA ICC Committee is very emicaged by the steps taken in the last year by this
Administration as concerns the ICC, including W&tticipation in the Eighth Session of the Assenddly
States Parties, the Resumed Session of the Eigiabid®, and this past summer’s Review Conference in
Kampala, Uganda; its commitment to assist Statediuilding their legal capacity to prosecute atnoci
crimes on a national level; assisting the ICC westigating and prosecuting the Lord’s ResistanoayA
leaders in Ugand&the Administration’s intent to meet with the Proser and ICC officials regarding
possible U.S. assistant®,and the numerous supportive statements made byselwas and other
Administration officials. We strongly encouragentaued principled and constructive engagement with
the ICC. The U.S. has always been a leader imgimgnthose who commit the worst atrocities to gestand

Servicemembers’ Protection Act of 2002, Section®2@Nothing in this title shall prohibit the Unitestates from rendering
assistance to international efforts to bring tdipgsSaddam Hussein, Slobodan Milosevic, Osama.&iten, other members of
Al Queda, leaders of Islamic Jihad, and other fpreiationals accused of genocide, war crimes oregiagainst humanity.”);
Ben Chang, Spokesman for National Security Adwisenes L. Jones (“We support the ICC in its pursiuihose who've
perpetrated war crimes. We see no reason to sigbei@rral [of the indictment of President Al-Baglat this time.”), at
http://washingtontimes.com/news/2009/feb/05/obalmekb-indictment-of-sudan-leader/; Susan E. Ric8, Bermanent
Representative to the UN (“It is our view that vpgort the ICC investigation and the prosecutiowar crimes in Sudan, and
we see no reason for an Article 16 deferral.”jitgh://www.washingtonpost.com/wp-
dyn/content/article/2009/02/08/AR2009020802191.htlahnnie Carson, US Assistant Secretary of Statdffican Affairs
Press Conference in Accra, Ghana (“We think thasiEent Bashir should present himself to the douféce charges. [...] If
their own court won'’t do it and the internationalet is available, he should present himself t9, iat
http://www.rferl.org/content/US_Urges_Sudans_Bashir Face ICC_Charges/1947621.html.

8 U.S. to Help Protect Kenyan Violence Witnessesc®of America News, Alan Boswell, February 11, @0airobi, Kenya,
http://www.voanews.com/english/news/africa/easttot$telp-Protect-Kenyan-Violence-Witnesses-8413 3462l

° “The Obama Administration’s Evolving Policy Towarthe International Criminal Court,” Douglas Duntidovember 15,
2010, www.amicc.org, citing http://amicc.org/docgAnda%20arrest%20warrants.pdf

91d., citing http://usun.state.gov/briefing/stateme2ft40/138999.htm; The Challenges and Future ofriaténal Justice,
Harold H. Koh, Legal Advisor, U.S. Department o&t®t Panel Discussion at NYU Center for Global #éaNew York, NY,
October 27, 2010, http://www.state.gov/s/l/releasesarks/150497.htm.



we support this Administration’s commitment. Thammittee stands ready to assist you and your staff
should you seek any clarification or further detailthese matters.

Respectfully submitted,
Do Ofuntes D. Siegel

Jennifer Trahan Charles D. Siegal
Chairperson of the ABILA ICC Committee Honoraryc¥iPresident, ABILA

M This letter does not represent the views of theeAman Branch of the International Law Associatiwhjch does not take
positions on issues. One member of the ABILA IC&nnittee did not join this letter.



